ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2016
1: 07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Matt C aman
Representative Dan Otiz

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 249

"An Act requiring the electronic subm ssion of a tax return or
report with the Departnent of Revenue; relating to the notor
fuel tax; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCOLUTI ON NO. 17

Supporting the aviation industry; and urging the governor to
make state-owned | and available to the unmanned aircraft systens
industry for the managenent and operation of unmanned aircraft
systens and related research, mnufacturing, testing, and
traini ng.

- MOVED CSHCR 17(TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 249

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRONI C TAX RETURNS & MOTOR FUEL TAX
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 16 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H) TRA, FIN

01/ 28/ 16 (H) TRA AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 28/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 16 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2016



02/ 04/ 16 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TCOL 17

BILL: HCR 17

SHORT TI TLE: SUPPORT AVI ATI ON | NDUSTRY; USE STATE LAND

SPONSOR(s): HUGHES

REFERRALS

01/ 29/ 16 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -

01/ 29/ 16 (H) TRA

02/ 02/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 02/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 16 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 04/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

RANDALL HOFFBECK, Conm ssi oner
Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Provi ded t he secti onal

KEN ALPER, Director

Tax Divi sion

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)
Anchor age, Al aska

anal ysis of HB 249.

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during the sectional

anal ysis of HB 249.

STEVE HATTER, Deputy Conm ssi oner
Ofice of the Conm ssi oner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOTPF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions relating to HB 249.

JOE SPRAGUE, Senior Vice President
Conmuni cati ons and External Rel ations
Al aska Airlines, Inc.

Seattl e, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 249,

GREG LOUDON, Menber
Al aska Chanber
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 249.

RON WLLE, GCeneral Manager
Kenai Fjords Tours
Sewar d, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2-

February 4, 2016



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 249.

CLARK M LNE
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 249.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 249.

FRED STURVAN
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

JAMES SQUYRES
Del tana, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

PAM GOODE
Del t ana, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

LARRY DEVI LBI SS
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 249.

G NCGER BLAI SDELL, Staff

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature;

Menmber

Unmanned Aircraft Systens Legislative Task Force

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HCR 17 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Hughes, prine sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:07: 50 PM

CO CHAI R SHELLEY HUGHES cal l ed the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:07 P.M Representatives Otiz,
Stutes, Nageak, C aman, and Hughes were present at the call to

order. Representative Foster arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2016



HB 249- ELECTRONI C TAX RETURNS & MOTOR FUEL TAX

1: 08: 41 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 249, "An Act requiring the electronic
submi ssion of a tax return or report with the Departnent of
Revenue; relating to the notor fuel tax; and providing for an
effective date."

1: 08: 50 PM

RANDALL HOFFBECK, Commi ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
began a review of the sectional analysis for HB 249 and stated
that Section 1 would add a $25 or 1 percent tax penalty for
failure to file electronically unless an exenption is received
by the taxpayer. He explained that all of the tax bills that
[the admi nistration] proposed this year include a requirenent
for electronic filing in order to increase efficiency and

inprove audit capabilities. He stated that Section 2 contains
the |anguage which requires the electronic subm ssion of tax
returns, license applications, and other docunents to the

Department of Revenue, and explained that the section also
outlines the process to request an exenption if the taxpayer is
unable to file electronically.

COWMWM SSI ONER  HOFFBECK explained that Section 3 effectively
changes the per gallon tax rate for dealers for all categories
of notor fuel as follows: hi ghway fuel and gasohol from $0.08
to $0.16; marine fuel from $0.05 to $0.10; aviation gasoline
from $0.047 to $0.10; and jet fuel from $0.032 to $0.10.
Section 4 | anguage changes the per gallon tax rates for users of
all categories of notor fuel by the same rates outlined in
Section 3.

1:11: 08 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from1:11 p.m to 1:14 p. m
1:14: 06 PM

COMM SSI ONER HOFFBECK continued his discussion of the sectiona
analysis and clarified that Section 3 and Section 4 provide the
i npl ementation |anguage for the rates in two statutes. He
expl ai ned that Section 5 |language will allow the increase of the
notor fuel refund rate for "off-road use" from $0.06 to $0.12
and Section 6 provides language clarifying that the tax

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2016



increases would apply to notor fuel sold after the effective
date, and that the filing requirement applies to returns
submtted after the effective date. He specified that Section 7
includes transitional language allowing for regulations to
i npl enment the changes; Section 8 |anguage details the immediate
effective date for the transitional regulatory |anguage; and
| anguage in Section 9 sets the effective date of July 1, 2016,
t hroughout the bill.

1:15: 30 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES inquired as to how the rates were determ ned,
and whether $49 nmllion was used as a target goal. Further, she
asked if an economc analysis of the proposed rates had been
conducted with consideration given toward the inpacts of marine
fuel increases on coastal comunities or highway fuel increases
on rural I ocales.

1: 16: 08 PM

COWMM SSI ONER HOFFBECK stated that the rates initially discussed
were significantly higher and closer to the national average, as
the Alaska nmotor fuel taxes are substantially |ower. He
specified that as the governor began to assess the amount of
i npact the taxes would have on various entities, the rates were
altered to distribute the burden across a larger base of the
econony, Wwth the idea that everyone should contribute. The
resulting agreenment was to double the tax; to neet the nationa
average it would need to be quadrupl ed. He said there wasn't a
| ot of science behind the proposed increase, given that it would
still be one of the lowest notor fuel tax rates in the country.
The adm nistration has conm ssioned the Institute of Social and
Economic Research (ISER) to conduct a study on the economc
i npacts of the governor's plan, which will be available soon.
The study was not necessarily designed to analyze the inpacts on
a specific user group or community, but rather, to describe the
potential inpacts of a tax increase in general. He noted that
with a $4.7 billion dollar deficit, everything [l|awrakers] do
w Il have sone inpact.

1:18: 07 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES rel ated her understanding that the proposed tax
rates were developed using a gut sense rather than a true
analysis, and she expressed appreciation for Conmm ssioner
Hof f beck's forthrightness in that regard. She stated that the
tax increase proposals taken as a whole - the notor fuel tax

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2016



i ncreases, inplenentation of an income tax, and a reduction in
permanent fund dividends - would disproportionately inpact sone
communi ties. She nentioned that she is |ooking forward to
reviewi ng the | SER st udy.

1:18: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether the national average for
fuel tax is $0.32 or $0.25.

COWMM SSI ONER HOFFBECK stated his understandi ng that the national
average i s $0. 32.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN rel ayed that the commttee had received a
letter from Deputy Commi ssioner Jerry Burnett of the Departnent
of Revenue (DOR), describing the federal requirenent to
exclusively spend aviation fuel tax revenue on airports.
However, the commttee also received a letter from Al aska
Airlines, Inc., basing its opposition to the tax increase on the
fact that the revenue would not be spent on airports; he
requested clarification on this discrepancy.

COWM SI ONER HOFFBECK deferred the question and confirmed that
the national average for fuel tax is $0.25 per gallon.

1: 20: 33 PM

KEN ALPER, Director, Tax Division, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
stated that he was wunfamliar with M. Burnett's letter;
however, the federal transportation admnistration does have
rules stating that aviation fuel taxes should be spent at
ai rports. It is the understanding at DOR that the rules have
been strictly enforced in recent years, and he recalled that the
i ssue had been brought before the body when a bill regarding the

refined fuel surcharge was passed. He related that the rules
regarding airport spending were part of the rationale for
excluding aviation fuel from that piece of |egislation. The

state provides a significant anmount of support to airports from
the general fund, and the anount of additional funding fromthe
i ncreased aviation fuel tax, as proposed under HB 249, would be
less than the state contributions to airports from the genera

fund; therefore, part of the proposed |egislation was designed
as a backfill for state spending. He explained that
approxi mat el y $200, 000 would be shared with certain mnunicipally
owned airports, and the remaining state funds would be used for
various, related support projects.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2016



1:21:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN requested confirmation that aviation taxes
are not currently directed to a dedicated fund, that the federal
governnent tracks how nuch revenue the state receives from
aviation fuel taxes, and expects that noney to be spent
specifically on airport projects.

MR. ALPER stated his understanding that one of the exenptions to
the rule on dedicated funds is an instance where there is a
federal requirenent. He explained that in the case of this
specific federal requirenment, Alaska's aviation funding is tied
to conpliance, and the state does not want to put the
substantial anmount of federal funding at risk.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether the intention 1is to
designate aviation tax revenues as dedicated funds, thus
all owi ng the federal governnent to track the expenditures.

MR. ALPER responded that the adm nistration does not anticipate
having a dedicated fund, per se, but, in terns of accounting,
the funds can be tracked to airport expenditures.

1:23:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NACGEAK opined that applying changes in the tax
structure to every type of notor fuel wll have a trenendous
i npact on rural communities, as fuel prices are based on what is
paid at the time the fuel is ordered. He expressed concern

regarding the disproportionate inpact a $0.16 per gallon tax
could have on people in rural Al aska where gas prices can be as
hi gh as $20 per gallon. He related that in many instances in
the Bush, people don't nmake an incone that can be taxed, but
this proposal would effectively tax the non-existent incones of

rural Al askans every time they buy fuel. He noted that the cost
of doing business is increasing, especially for businesses that
provi de support services to rural Al askan villages. He rel ated

t hat when the cost of doing business goes up, the increased cost
is passed on to the consuner; the increases are visited on rural
Al askans, who may be forced to choose between buying a gallon of
mlk and going wthout. He explained that the price of the
comodity is set when it is delivered by barge, which could be a
nmonth prior to a price change. He re-enphasized his stance that
the tax increase would fall disproportionately on people wth
fixed incones or no incone at all.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2016



COWM SSI ONER HOFFBECK replied that having lived in Barrow for
ei ght years, he understands the concerns regarding the price of
fuel . He stated that sone conponents of the notor fuel tax
proposal have been designed to buffer the inpact on rural
Al askans. He further explained that because the tax increase is
not percentage-based, but is instead based on how much fuel a
consuner purchases, it is not a flat tax. He explained that the
other conponent ainmed at dimnishing the inpact on rural
Al askans is the increase in the "off-road use" refund, which is
avai lable for people who primarily drive off the road system
with four wheelers, for exanple. He stated that the |argest
share of the notor fuel tax would be paid by urban consuners who
travel significantly nore mles and burn nore gas.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked whether the requirement to submt
tax returns electronically would apply to everyone. He pointed
out that there are many people in rural Al aska who do not have
access to conputers or have not had the experience and
opportunities necessary to gain conputing skills. He noted that
if HB 249 passes, it would inplement a $25 or 1 percent tax
penalty for failure to file electronically unless an exenption
is received by the tax payer. He asked who would qualify for an
exenpti on.

COWM SSI ONER HOFFBECK responded that the taxes are paid at the
distributor level, thus individuals would not have to neet the
requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK stressed that the tax will be passed on to
t he consuner.

COWMM SSI ONER HOFFBECK agreed and said that there is a provision
allowing any taxpayer to file on paper if they do not have the
ability to file electronically.

1: 30: 07 PM

CO- CHAIR FOSTER noted that the issue of equity was raised
previously and stated that conparing highway and narine fuel
taxes is an "apples to oranges" conparison. He observed that
the increases outlined in HB 249 are $0.08 for highway fuel and
$0.05 for marine, and noted that the aviation tax increases are
$0.047 to $0.10 and $0.032 to $0.10 for gasoline and jet fuel

respectively. He noted the two rates for aviation fuel, and
stated his understanding that aviation gas tends to be used nore
by private pilots of smaller aircraft and that jet fuel is used
for airplanes with jet or turbine engines, thus, for nore

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2016



comercial applications. The reconmendation was made by the
Avi ation Advisory Board, and he asked for the rationale behind
setting the different aviation fuel tax rates.

MR. ALPER answered that the tax rates for aviation and jet fue
have been on the books for decades, but he said he was uncertain
as to the exact history. He stated that the [Aviation Advisory
Board] favored a tax increase over a |landing fee increase; there
is an authentic need for funding to support [ ai rport]
operations, and the admnistration is hoping to avoid |anding
fee increases.

CO CHAI R FOSTER noted that historically, jet fuel has been taxed
at a lower rate than aviation gas, and he speculated that it was
perhaps during a tinme period when significantly less jet fuel
was being used. He asked whether this rate was set in the
1970s.

MR. ALPER stated that he believed it was the 1970s and, to put
the scale of the changes in perspective, said the State of
Al aska has taxed an average of 625 mllion gallons of fuel per
year through the four taxes effected in HB 249. He stated that
jet fuel has accounted for 125 mllion gallons of the total
taxed, and general aviation fuel has only accounted for about 10
mllion gallons; general aviation fuel is a nuch smaller volune
of consunption and is used by private pilots and small planes

He stated that it is inportant to be aware that there are
actually 400 mllion gallons of jet fuel purchased in Al aska
every year, but the vast nmpjority is exenpted from tax because
it is connected to international flights, largely through the
Anchor age frei ght hub

1: 33: 16 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER noted that wunder the proposed |egislation the
aviation gas would experience an increase of $0.053, and jet
fuel $0.068. He asked whether nmuch of the jet fuel is exenpt
from taxation because it's purchased by conpanies such as Korean
Airlines, and others not based in Al aska.

COWMM SSI ONER HOFFBECK cl arified that the way the current federa
law is interpreted by the State of Alaska is that flights com ng
from as well as traveling to, foreign destinations are tax
exenpt. He confirned that a portion of the Alaska Airlines fue
purchases are tax exenpt.

1: 34: 29 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- February 4, 2016



REPRESENTATIVE ORTIZ stated that he shares Representative
Nageak's concern about the inpact of a fuel tax on rural Al aska.
Many of his constituents also reside in rural |ocales and there
is no question about the tax inpact being greater in the Bush;

however, the alternative is to reduce services in lieu of
increasing revenue, and reductions in services - whether in
education, broadband, or simlar - also have a disproportionate

i npact on rural Al aska. He stated that the problem that both
the admnistration and the legislature face is that any changes

will have a negative inpact. It's worth remenbering that the
| egislature is discussing the inpacts of revenue increases on
constituents, but reduction in services wll also have negative
I npacts. He asked for confirmation that the revenue of rural

airports is subsidized from the general fund, at the 80 percent
| evel .

1: 37:15 PM

STEVE HATTER, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOTPF),
clarified that the representative's reference is to the funding
gap between revenue and expenses relating to the operation of

rural aviation systens; a gap of approximately $34 mllion per
year. The systens requires approximately $35 mllion to
maintain and operate, wth an additional $5 mllion in
adm nistrative costs. He stated that [ DOTPF] col l ects

approximately $5.8 million in revenue, primarily through |ease
rates, and the remai nder cones out of the general fund.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z stated his belief that the cal cul ated gap
equates to a subsidy of approxinmately 80 percent, supporting the
i dea that nmuch of the DOTPF airport revenues, from fuel taxes or
ot her sources, are directed back to the aviation support system

MR. HATTER replied that is correct. He stated that, at the
current fuel tax rate, state airport expenses far exceed the
revenue from aviation fuel taxes. The large gap provides the
means for t he state to meet t he Feder al Avi ati on

Adm nistration's (FAA' s) grant assurance requirenents.
1:38:49 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER asked for figures describing the funding gaps
for the road system and the Al aska Marine H ghway System ( AVHS).

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2016



MR. HATTER replied that he did not know the figures off the top
of his head for the amount of those two gaps, but ventured that
the AWVHS funding gap is a considerable amunt as well. He
stated that increasing revenue from all sections of the notor
fuel tax plan would definitely help close the gap, but would
ultimately cone nowhere near covering operating costs.

1: 39: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated that over the |ast several days he
has received comunications fromthe Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation
(ATA), heavy users of diesel fuel, stating support for HB 249
and the proposed increase in the notor fuel tax. The
Associ ation of General Contractors, also mmjor users of diese
fuel, has also offered its opinion. Further, he reported that
he has spoken with a tour operator, whose conpany consunes 5, 600
gal l ons of diesel on a weekly basis. In rough cal culation, the
tour operator would experience a $450 to $500 per week increase
under HB 249. He stated that all of the aforenmentioned groups

and individuals support this tax increase. He asked if there
are any statistics available conparing diesel versus gas
consunpti on. The conversation is frequently geared toward the

i npacts on consuners, he noted, and offered that consunmers would
see an approxinmate $80 per year increase in notor fuel taxes
assuming two cars and a driving range of about 20,000 mles per
year. He asked whether nore of the tax would be paid by the
maj or users of diesel fuel or the average consunmers who use |ess
in general, and whether the difference is simlar to private
aircraft and conmercial aircraft wusers: conmercial aircraft
users purchase nore jet fuel than private aviation users do
avi ation gas.

1:41: 24 PM

MR. ALPER offered to provide further information to the
conmttee, regarding the nunber of gallons of gasoline versus
di esel fuel taxed [annually]. However, specifying diesel fuel
use, with regard to application for industrial purposes versus
what is consunmed by the average diesel autonobile owner, nay be
beyond t he scope of the division, he explained.

1: 41: 45 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked if the econom c analysis being conducted
by SER is going to describe inpacts by region.

1:43: 00 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2016



COWMWM SSI ONER HOFFBECK stated his uncertainty whether the |SER
report would include regional analysis, and indicated that the
adm nistration contracted ISER to do an inpact study of the
vari ous issues pertinent to this |egislative session. The task
of determ ning nethodol ogy has been left up to ISER, allow ng
the study to be <conducted from a totally independent
per specti ve. Responding to a followup question, he projected
that the report would be conplete within two weeks and an
executive sunmmary avail abl e early next week.

1:43: 59 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES, returning to the foreign jet fuel tax exenption
as it applies to international flights, expressed her
understanding that Al aska statute exenpts the flights; however
the statutes are based on federal [aw which has been
successfully challenged in Florida. She said a question exists
regarding the free-trade zone, near the Anchorage airport, and
she asked for information on the flexibility of the foreign
exenpti on. If foreign flights conprise 80 percent of the jet
fuel sold in the state, she conjectured that, even wthout
changing the aviation fuel price, sinply elinmnating the
exenption would provide a considerable anpbunt of revenue. She
asked whet her DOR had statistical information for that scenario.

1: 45: 10 PM

MR. ALPER replied that DOR had run sone simlar analyses
regarding nunbers and the order of nmagnitude, at the tine the
| egi sl ature was considering the fuel surcharge bill introduced
| ast session, and he offered to rework the nunbers to provide
updated information to the conmttee. He said he was not
famliar wth the specifics of the Florida case, but there are
sonme federal constitutional issues related to the comerce
cl ause. He stated his awareness of differences between outbound
and inbound foreign flights, which include a rule regarding
flights continuing on |ocally. He suggested that when it cones
time for public testinmony, Alaska Airlines would have a strong
opi nion on the issue.

1:45: 43 PM
CO CHAIR HUGHES opined that the foreign exenption is pertinent
to the conversation. Despite considerable fuel price

fluctuations over the years, carriers have continued to provide
service to Anchorage. A break-even point exists where it would

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2016



no |longer nake sense for an airline to provide service to
Al aska, and that is sonething the commttee needs to understand.
She noted that of the $49 nmillion anticipated revenue
busi nesses and residents would each pay a portion, and although

the Dbusiness - not just transporters, but all types of
busi nesses including retail and service providers - would pay
the tax initially, ultimately the cost would be passed on to
consuners. She posited that a tax increase wll affect all

Al askans and individuals would ultimtely pay, which, she
stressed is her primary concern.

CO CHAI R HUGHES conpared the governor's tax proposal strategy to
throwi ng proposals against a wall to see what sticks, peeling
off those that do, adding them up, and reassessing the bottom
line afterward. She noted that Al aska's high cost of governnent
is anong the highest in the nation and held that the proposed
budget maintains that status. She opined that further
reductions in costs nust be made, and expressed concern over the
conbi nation of maintaining the high cost of governnent and the
prospect of collecting $49 mllion with the proposed tax. She
said every dollar that is not reduced from the budget will cone
out of residents' pockets and suggested that a dollar in the
pocket of the private sector in Alaska has a larger nultiplier
effect than a dollar held by governnent.

CO CHAIR HUGHES restated her concern about the proposal, and
enphasi zed that it may affect some conmunities nore heavily than
ot hers. She said the tax may be low relative to other states,
but Al askans pay nore at the punp; California and Hawaii nay pay
nore, but it can be offset by |lower food costs. She remarked
that the average amobunt of fuel used in sonme Al askan |ocal es far
exceeds that of others and offered an exanple from her region:
one parent has a daily comute while the other drives the

chil dren t hr oughout t he Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough.
Additionally, for some people, at trip to the store nay nean a
20-mle round trinp. The proposed tax would inpact her area

significantly, she predicted and said that she would feel nore
confortabl e reducing the budget to essential services; however,
if circunstance arose where an area would |ose an Al aska State
Trooper or close a section of road, then she mi ght support a tax
increase. Knowing that the $49 nillion would be going back into
transportation infrastructure and maintenance, rather than to
the general fund, would also provide some piece of mnd, she
shar ed.

1: 50: 58 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK st at ed t hat Al aska' s pri mary
transportation nodes are marine and avi ation, and he pointed out
that marine transportation is seasonal for South Central,

Sout hwest ern, and Northern coastal regions due to ice
condi ti ons. These nethods are the only travel options for
residents who do not live on the road or rail system which is a
circunstance that will not change. He indicated that connecting
all areas of the state by road remains cost prohibitive and,
gi ven t he transportation chal | enges, | eaves comuni ties

isolated. As an aside, he noted that sone of that isolation is
countered by nodern communication technology, which allows
events to be transmitted instantaneously. He explained that due
to the seasonality of transportation to some regions, if the
cost of fuel was high, at the tinme of purchase and delivery, it
woul d remain high until the next buying season; between February
and June of the follow ng year. Fuel costs are significantly
higher in rural Alaska than elsewhere in the state, he
mai nt ai ned, and expressed uncertainly as to how rural Al askans
woul d get through the fiscal challenge.

1: 54: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN requested that M. Alper be directed to
provide the comrittee wth figures conparing expenses and
revenue for both the rural and international airports for the
pur pose of drawi ng a conplete picture of the funding gap.

1: 54: 38 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES stated that the United Parcel Service of
Anerica, Inc., Delta Ar Lines, Inc., and Checker D spatch, LLC
has each submitted a testinobnial letter, which are included in
the conm ttee packet.

1: 55: 35 PM

JOE SPRAGUE, Senior Vice President, Conmunications and Externa
Rel ati ons, Al aska Airlines, Inc., introduced the team nenbers in
attendance and pointed out the witten testinony available in
the conmmttee packet. He said Alaska Airlines has operated in

Al aska for 84 years, and currently provides service to 19
cities. He explained that only 3 of these cities are connected
to the road system and, from that standpoint, Alaska Airlines
views its services as a critical conponent of the state's
i nfrastructure. He held that this is further evidenced by the
fact that the conpany build the termnal facilities for 11 of
the communities served. In other words, these facilities, which

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2016



woul d be funded by nunicipal and state governments anywhere el se
in the country, are provided by Alaska Airlines at no cost to
the state. Alaska Airlines has maintained these facilities over

the vyears, and 1is about to invest in them again; the
infrastructure directly provided to the airports is a |large part
of Alaska Airlines' service to the state. He reported that

Al aska Airlines has 1,820 enployees in Alaska and is privileged
to count the vast mgjority of +the residents of Al aska as
cust oners.

MR. SPRAGUE stated that due to the conpany's extensive presence
in the state, it is very concerned with HB 249, as it would
raise the tax on jet fuel by over 200 percent. In addition to
the jet fuel tax increase being exceedingly large, internal
cal cul ations suggest that Alaska Airlines would pay over 30
percent of the increase. He stated his concern regarding how
the taxes would be wutilized, wth +the revenue initially
transferred to the general fund, and eventually allocated to the
avi ati on system He pointed out that the FAA stipulates use of
state tax revenue for aviation purposes when those funds are
collected from aviation entities. He enphasized that, due to
the conpany's awareness of the fiscal challenges facing the
state, it's not saying "heck no" to any sort of tax increase,
recognizing that all businesses and residents need to be
involved in the necessary solutions. He warned that the fuel
tax increase will inpact nuch needed comerce in the state, as
wel |l as basic needs. In many cases Alaska Airlines is the
primary neans of transporting basic compdities to a town, and
as well as providing the neans for residents to access |arger
urban areas for basic needs such as nedical care and other
servi ces. He announced that Alaska Airlines intends to begin a
mul ti-pronged investnent in the state, estimated to total tens
of mllions of dollars, on three to four year projects, which

i ncl ude: I nprovenents to the 11 rural termnal facilities, the
devel opnment of a new hangar and aircraft maintenance facility at
the Ted Stevens Anchorage International Airport, and the

conversion of three nodern 737 aircraft for use as freighters to
support the cargo and airfreight needs of the state. Al t hough
new revenue may be needed, Alaska Airlines wurges carefu
consideration of the inmpact of such a large tax increase on a
single, critical conmponent of the state's infrastructure. He
concluded by review ng the economc contributions being nmade by
Alaska Airlines in a variety of ways including a corporate
incone tax for 2015 of $10 nmillion and paid approxinmately $2
mllion in state fuel tax.

2:01: 27 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 15- February 4, 2016



CO CHAIR FOSTER asked the admnistration to coment regarding
the FAA's requirenent for expenditures of aviation revenue.

COWM SSI ONER HOFFBECK replied that the state is spending nore in
the maintenance and operation of airports than it collects in
avi ation taxes; which can be easily denonstrated. If the state
were to collect nore from aviation than they spend, there would
be an issue. He noted that there is also an issue related to
dedi cated funds within the constitution. It requires DOR to
track the funds and ensure that what is spent is at |east equa
to, or greater than, the anount received in the aviation tax.

2: 04: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether the fact that nore state
nmoney goes into the airports than conmes in from aviation taxes
sufficiently addresses Alaska Airlines' concern about the |ack
of a dedicated aviation fund.

MR. SPRAGUE replied affirmatively, and said that of nobre concern
is the added cost of several mllion dollars that Al aska

Airlines would incur, specific to intra-Al aska operations. He
stated that high fares are the norm on intra-Al aska routes, as
it is very expensive to operate in-state. Al aska Airlines

continues to seek ways to |ower operating costs and the tax
increase would serve to increase expenses, potentially for many
years to cone.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAVMAN offered his assunption that if the fuel
tax increases by $0.068 per gallon, the conpany will recal cul ate
its rates, resulting in consuners paying nore for air travel.

MR. SPRAGUE concurred, and said that, |ike any business, Al aska
Airlines must cover its costs and when expenses rise, pricing is
adjusted to cover the increase. He added that, as Al aska

Airlines is considering a very large capital investnent in the
state, the addition of a recurring cost, while not necessarily
causi ng the conpany to cancel plans, does curb its enthusiasm

2:07: 05 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z stated his assunption that with oil down to
$30 per barrel, Alaska Airlines' fuel costs have been reduced

significantly. He asked if it is accurate to say that Al aska
Airlines has benefitted from the lower fuel costs, and that,

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2016



even with the additional tax, the price of fuel renains |ower
than it was two years ago.

MR. SPRAGUE agreed that |ower fuel prices have been a benefit,
and fares are down because the conpany is able to pass the

savings on to its custoners. The |ower cost has also hel ped
Alaska Airlines' financial position, allowing it to consider
capital investnents in the state. He pointed out that fuel
prices fluctuate significantly and - while experts may suggest
that prices are going to be "lower, longer"” in the present - if
a fuel tax increase is enacted, it could remain in place

i ndefinitely. He related that the belief held by the airline
industry is that oil prices are going to rebound and conpanies
wi |l pay higher prices over tine.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTIZ asked whether the lack of significant
progress by the state, regarding its fiscal situation, increases
the risks associated with Alaska Airlines' intended capital
i nvestnments.

MR. SPRAGUE replied that Al aska Airlines has certain needs in

the state of Alaska with respect to operations. The rural
termnals are in need of inprovenents as the newest is 15 years
ol d, the facilities are exposed to harsh environnental

conditions nuch of the year, and none have been adjusted to neet
the (Transportation Security Admnistration) TSA requirenents
i nposed after [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001].
The changes need to take place regardless of what the state does
to address the fiscal situation; this holds true for both the
mai nt enance facility in Anchorage and the conpany's conmm tnent
to serving cargo needs. He suggested that Alaska Airlines wll
likely proceed with the investnents, but will do so with sone
level of trepidation given an economc environment that 1is
cloudy at best and, absent |legislative action, could get
cl oudier. He enphasized, yes, there is concern.

2:10:48 PM

CO- CHAI R FOSTER asked if Alaska Airlines is a nenber of, or has
input into, the Aviation Advisory Board, which nade the
recommendati ons for the proposed tax increases.

MR. SPRAGUE confirmed the conpany's awareness of the proceedings
with the Aviation Advisory Board, and has an executive who
represents the airlines as a nenber. However, Al aska Airlines
did not have a participating nmenber when the recomrendation for
the tax increase was made. He stated his appreciation for the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2016



guestion, because it is an inportant distinction. M. Sprague
offered assurance that Alaska Airlines' is supportive of its
aviation colleagues in Alaska, and works closely wth other
avi ation operators, whether in regard to safety or comerci al
I Ssues. It's unusual for Alaska Airlines to have a different
position from the rest of the aviation operators in the state
but what makes it unique is the |evel of investnment the conpany
has made in the state's aviation infrastructure. He remarked
that sonme other airlines have their own termnal facilities, but
none of them have eleven, |arge, TSA-equipped, cargo-equipped,
termnal facilities.

2:12: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated that he has heard nany business
| eaders express the urgent inportance of addressing the fisca
gap this session and not postponing action to another session.
He asked which would be the greater risk to Alaska Airlines'
confidence in continued investnent in Al aska: the fuel tax
increasing to $0.10 or the legislature not nmaking real progress
toward closing the fiscal gap.

MR. SPRAGUE stated that Alaska Airlines' understanding is that
the amount of revenue that would be raised by increasing the
nmotor fuel taxes would not sufficiently address the state's
fiscal challenges.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN clarified that he was referencing the
|arger fiscal situation, not just the fuel tax, wth his
previ ous questi on.

MR. SPRAGUE stated that Alaska Airlines' view is that action is
going to have to be taken across the various l|levers that are
available to the legislature to address the issue.

2:14: 08 PM

GREG LOUDON, nenber, Al aska Chanber, stated that the chanber's
legislative affairs commttee nenbers were asked to clarify
priorities for the upcom ng |legislative session. He pointed out
that witten testinony was submtted on August 24, 2015, to
Governor \Wal ker and the Al aska State Legislature. For answering
the fiscal situation, the Al aska Chanber's nunber one priority
is the reduction of state spending to a sustainable |evel, which
the chanber defines as $4.5 billion, or less, of wunrestricted
general fund expenditures by fiscal year 2018 (FY18). The
second priority is to use permanent fund earnings, and the |ast

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2016



priority is to invoke broad-based taxes. He inforned the
commttee that the inportant nessage from the Al aska Chanber is
that it supports closing the fiscal gap and encourages the
legislature to take strong action this session to acconplish
that, but it wants the focus to be on cutting state expenses
before | ooking to other sources of revenue.

2:15: 35 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER noted that, if the legislature were to use the
per manent fund earnings, after subtracting what is needed to pay

a dividend and inflation proofing, approximately $5 billion
woul d be available. At the current oil price of $20 to $30 per
barrel that sum would be gone in as little as 18 nonths. He

asked whet her Al aska Chanber has a |ong-term strategy.

MR. LOUDON stated that the Al aska Chanber has not taken a
specific position on the governor's proposed bill or related
| egislation, as introduced. The Al aska Chanber knows that sone
form of legislation is necessary, and it is not advocating that
the state spend all of the permanent fund earnings. The chanber
is enphasizing the inportance for the legislature to reduce
stat e spendi ng before considering other sources of revenue.

2:17: 27 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES asked for clarification that the Al aska
Chanber's stance is that there is a preferred order to the
actions taken to close the gap: reduce governnent spending, use
the permanent fund in sone way, and, as a last resort, increase
t axes.

MR. LOUDON replied that is correct.

CO CHAIR HUGHES comented that Al aska's budget from ten years

ago, adjusted for inflation, was approximately $4.1 billion.
She granted that there are differences now such as pension
obligations and health care. A $4.5 billion wunrestricted

general fund budget sounds like a realistic target, and she said
she personally does not recall any public outcry about a |ack of
government services 10 years ago.

2:18:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if the Al aska Chanber has any ideas
regardi ng ways to cut state spending.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2016



MR. LOUDON responded that the chanber has devel oped a framework
for how it would suggest naking reductions in governnent
spendi ng; however, the framework does not involve isolated cuts,
but offers departnment by departnent reconmendati ons.

2:19: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTIZ asked if the Alaska Chanber has been
provided with any information on the economc inpacts of the
recommended reductions. He gave the exanple of a significant
reduction in spending for the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
(ADFG resulting in a lack of positions necessary to acconplish
their projects, which nmay result in nore conservative managenent
deci sions, which would in turn result in fewer fish caught, and
ultimately less income earned in the fisheries. He stated that
the legislature needs to reduce the budget and wll, but the
question is how that is acconplished with a mniml inpact on
the overall econony. He asked if there has been any anal ysis on
the inpact of a $4.5 billion budget.

MR. LOUDON answered that the Alaska Chanber worked with |SER
and other state resources, to analyze the potential economc
i npacts of budget reductions. The $4.5 billion dollar nunber is
a summary of the expenditures that the Al aska Chanber believes
i S reasonabl e.

2:20:56 PM

RON WLLE, General Manager, Kenai Fjords Tours, stated that the
implemrentation of a $0.05 increase in marine fuel tax rates
woul d double the current rate and substantially increase costs
to his conpany. He stated that in recent years back-to-back

doubl e-digit mninmum wage increases for sone of the seasonal

entry level jobs that Kenai Ford Tours hires have also
i ncreased costs. He said coupling these increases has had an
impact on the business and the conpany's bottom |ine. The
mari ne fuel taxes made nore sense, he said, when the state owned
and operated many of the harbors throughout the state. Sewar d
now owns and maintains its own harbor, and the revenue from
marine fuel taxes do not seem to directly transfer from the
state to the local coffers. He asked whether funds generated by
the marine fuel tax would be dedicated to locally owned ports
and harbors. Anot her area of concern, simlar to that held by
people in rural Al aska, is that the conpany only has one marine
fuel supplier, which causes |less conpetition in the market and
can lead to higher prices. He concluded by stating that |arge
i ncreases over such a short tinme period does not allow a conpany

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- February 4, 2016



to make adjustnents to its pricing structure and conpensate for
t he i ncreased costs.

2:23:28 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES asked what the projected, additional costs would
be for his business, under HB 249.

MR. WLLE replied that fuel costs would increase by tens of
t housands of doll ars.

2:23:50 PM
CO CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinony on HB 249.
2:24:02 PM

CLARK MLNE stated support for HB 249 and SB 132 and said he
believes that the revenue would be allocated to current road

harbor, and airport maintenance expenditures. He stated his
understanding that Al aska's highway fuel tax is the lowest in
the country, at $0.08, and would remain the |owest even if
increased to the proposed $0.16. He stated that inplenentation
of the tax would put Alaska in better stead with the Federal
H ghway Adm nistration and given that the overall cost of fuel
has dropped by 50 percent, the addition of $0.08 is not a
significant burden. The proposed tax increase, as structured by
the Aviation Advisory Board, would not result in any new
collection costs and would be visited upon people who use the

associ ated infrastructure. Also, the inpacts of a fuel tax
would be greater for fuel-based businesses such as taxis,
airlines, mning, and construction. It is inperative for Al aska

to continue using the subaccounts within the general fund, he
said, as mandated by AS 43.40.010 (g), which reads as follows:
"The proceeds of the revenue from the tax on all notor fuels,
except as provided in (e), (f) and (j) of this section, shall be
deposited in a special highway fuel tax account in the state
general fund." He opined that because of this statute, the
state does not need a dedicated fund. He said he is not certain
that the subaccount is a designated fund, but it is handled and
accounted for in such a way that the legislature or a private
citizen can track revenues and expenses. The entire $49 nillion
tax increase divided by 700,000 citizens would result in a per-
capita increase of about $70 per person, per year, which, he
predi cted, would hel p neet the needs of the state.

2:27: 31 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- February 4, 2016



CO CHAIR HUGHES clarified that, even though the subaccounts are
witten in statute, the legislature has the ability to nove the
funds and use themin whatever way i s deened necessary.

2:28: 13 PM

AVES THOWMPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association

stated support for HB 249, and said that one of the ATA
| egislative priorities in 2016 is the devel opnent of a bal anced,
dur abl e, | ong-term fiscal plan utilizing cuts to state
government, permanent fund earnings, and taxes, if required. He
stated that the fuel tax increase, as proposed in HB 249, is
acceptable to ATA, wthin the framework of a long-term fisca

pl an. He stated that ATA believes action is critical this
| egi sl ative session and has |ong-supported a fuel tax increase
if the funds can be dedicated to transportation needs. He

relayed that it is ATA's understanding that the funds woul d not
be dedicated in HB 249, but ATA's menbers feel strongly that
they need to help resolve the fiscal issues by doing their part.

2:29: 47 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked whether ATA agrees with the governor's
proposed budget or if the association is nore inclined to
support the Al aska Chanber's proposal of a $4.5 billion budget.

MR. THOMPSON responded that ATA want to see further reduction in
state spending, consideration of wuse of the pernmanent fund
earnings, and an increase in taxes - all part of a longer-term
pl an. He stated that action needs to take place now, and that
there is a lot of wuncertainty in the credit markets, in
construction, in transportation, and in other industries; people
are wondering what w Il happen next. He urged the commttee to
consi der the whol e package and said the notor fuel tax increase
is acceptable within the framework of a |arger plan.

2:31:32 PM

FRED STURMAN stated opposition to HB 249, and said that he has
been testifying regularly over the past ten years in an effort
to persuade the legislature to reduce governnent spending. He
expressed opposition to any new taxes until the state cuts at
| east 30 percent of its spending. Wuen it cones tinme to discuss
taxes, the state should start with an incone tax, followed by a
sales tax, followed by accessing the pernmanent fund, he opined,
and concluded that by accessing the permanent fund, inplenenting

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- February 4, 2016



a sales tax, increasing notor fuel tax rates, and sonme of the
ot her proposed taxes the state would effectively elimnate any
di scretionary noney held by the public, and there would no
| onger be an econony. As an owner of a couple of small
busi nesses, he reported that business has been down by 15 to 20
percent in the last two years and is getting worse. He rel ated
that he recently spoke with people who are selling everything

they have and noving out of state. The econony in the near
future is going to be wirse than it was in the 1980s unless
there are mmjor cuts to governnent spending. Based on a $4

billion fiscal gap, the state is short $5,714 per capita. He
stated his hope that the legislature would stop discussing
i npl enentation of new taxes and start focusing on cuts to the
gover nnent . Addi tionally, he suggested that the Division of
Mot or Vehicles (DW) and the Kodiak rocket launch facility be
cut and that road nai ntenance be contract ed. He suggested that
the State of Alaska should purchase products and services in
support of the governnment from locally owned businesses as nuch
as possible, and opined that the legislature for the past 10 to
20 years has been spending nore than it can afford.

2:35:41 PM

JAMES SQUYRES stated opposition to HB 249 and opined that the
| egi sl ature should further reduce the size of governnent rather
than entertain the governor's plan to increase revenue at the
expense of the private econony. The state should be continuing
to cut, not "run from one side of the boat to the other." He
encouraged nenbers to endorse the judicious use of the earnings
reserve and the power of the majority to lower the overal
budget to $4.5 billion. He stated that a 100 percent increase
in the fuel tax 1is one of several proposals that would
inordinately place the burden of the fiscal crisis on the backs
of the people. He related that he lives in rural Al aska, drives
80 mles round trip to get to town, plows one nle of
unmai ntained state road to get to his driveway, and nmnust
maintain two plow trucks to ensure access to his property. He
stated that gasoline is wused for energy, plow ng, cutting,
splitting, and transport to and fromtown. He related that fue
costs have finally come down for the interior, and posed the
guestion, "WIIl the fuel tax be dropped if the price of oil goes
back up?" He restated his opposition to HB 249, because of the
budget .

2: 37: 45 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -23- February 4, 2016



PAM GOODE stated opposition to HB 249, and opined that the

proposed bill is unnecessary and a total waste of tine. She
said the legislature should focus entirely on cutting the size
of governnment, not on raising revenue. She stated her

under standi ng that DOTPF has increased in size by 109 percent in
the last 10 years, and this increase was not used for services,
but instead to "hold up the size of governnment."” The econonic
chal l enge is faced by all Al askans and the rural sector is going
to be hit very hard. She posited that the bigger insult to
rural Al askans is the renoval of noney from the private sector
and its placenent in the hands of government, which is normally
|ocated in the larger cities; therefore, the state would be
taking noney out of the rural communities and placing it in
cities. She commented on the argunment that an increase in
notor fuel tax is positive because it captures tourism dollars,
stating that the summer is not just the tourism season, but is
also the tine of year that all Al askans travel. She i ndicated
that she was offended by the claim that, when conpared to other
states, Alaska does not tax enough. The cost of living in
Alaska is already high she said, and stressed that she doesn't
want Alaska to be like other states. Al aska has nore liberty
and nore freedom she opined, and it needs to stay that way.
The only way to ensure that happens is to keep the size of
government down. She restated her opposition to HB 249, because
she said it would not address the root cause of the fiscal
probl em governnent spendi ng.

2:40: 14 PM

LARRY DEVILBISS testified that he is a beef farnmer attenpting to
conpete with cattle farns in the Lower 48. He related that in
the Lower 48, cattle can graze on natural grass for nine nonths
per year and farmers only have to provide feed for 3 nonths per
year; however, the opposite is true in Alaska, where farners
nmust provide feed 9 nonths per year. He said the consequence of
this is that in the sumrer, [his farn] puts up a ot of hay. He
stated that last year's "Schedule F' form for his federal incone
tax confirmed that fuel is easily the largest single expense in
the cost of putting up hay in the sumrer, and is easily 50
percent nore than the cost of fertilizer. He explained that
fuel costs are a huge inpact, and he is aware of an exenption
that exists for off-road users, but HB 249 woul d double his farm
t ax. He stated his awareness that someday this sort of
provision may be necessary, but he said it bothers him that
state governnent wants to "reach into his pocket” on July 1, at
the time of first hay cut, before the |egislature has determ ned
a sustainable level of government. The |egislature should find

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 24- February 4, 2016



the mnimal level of state services, before dipping into the
private side of the econony. He posited that state governnent
is nore concerned with preserving the public econony than the
private economny.

2:43: 04 PM

CO-CHAIR HUGHES announced that HB 249 would be held over and
that public testinony would remain open.

The conmttee took an at ease from2:43 to 2:49 p. m

HCR 17- SUPPORT AVI ATI ON | NDUSTRY; USE STATE LAND

2:49: 06 PM
[ CO- CHAI R HUGHES passed the gavel to Co-Chair Foster.]

CO- CHAI R FOSTER announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 17, Supporting the aviation
i ndustry; and wurging the governor to nmake state-owned | and
avail able to the unmanned aircraft systens (UAS) industry for
the managenment and operation of UAS and related research,
manuf acturing, testing, and training.

2:49:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK noved to adopt Anendnent 1 [not | abel ed],
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, Line 13:
Renmove: "avi ation”
I nsert: "unmanned aircraft systens”
Wereas the state anticipates 173 new jobs in the
aviat+en unmanned aircraft systens industry...

Page 1, Line 15:
Renove: "avi ation”
Insert: "unmanned aircraft systens”
Jobs indirectly created by the awiatien unmanned
aircraft systens that...

Page 2, Line 1:

Insert at end of the paragraph:

Rel ated earnings into the state's econony as
identified in the My 2013 MDowell|l Goup report

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -25- February 4, 2016



prepared for the Alaska Center for Unnanned Aircraft
Systens Integration, University of Al aska Fairbanks.

2:50: 06 PM
CO CHAI R FOSTER obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
2:50: 15 PM

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Staff, Representative Shelley Hughes, Al aska
State Legislature, Menber, Unmanned Aircraft Systens Legislative
Task Force, stated that Amendnment 1 has three parts designed to
add sonme clarification and was brought to the attention of the
commttee by Representative  aman. She stated that under
Amendrent 1, on page 1, line 13, the word "aviation" would be
renoved and replaced with "unmanned aircraft systens", because
the information provided is specific to UAS rather than the
entire aviation industry. She stated that the same change woul d
be made on page 1, |ine 15. She said on page 2, line 1, the
change references the source of the information as a My 2013
McDowell Group report prepared for the Alaska Center for
Unmanned Aircraft Systens Integration at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks, as part of an application to be an FAA test
site.

2:51:36 PM

CO CHAI R FOSTER renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

2:51: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK noved to adopt Anendnent 2 [not | abel ed],
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 2 ADD a new section follow ng |ine 26:

COPIES of this resolution shall be sent to the
Honorable Mchael P. Huerta, Admnistrator, Federal

Avi ati on Adm ni stration; Honor abl e Bill wal ker ,
Governor of Al aska; Comm ssioners of all Al aska State
Depart nents; Executi ve Directors of al | State

Corporations; and Brian Wnne, President and CEQ
Associ ation for Unmanned Vehicle Systens |nternational

2:51:59 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 26- February 4, 2016



CO CHAI R FOSTER obj ected for the purpose of discussion
2:52:05 PM

M5. BLAI SDELL stated that Amendnent 2 adds a new section, wth
| anguage identifying where copies of HCR 17 are to be provided

She said all state departnents are being encouraged to | ook at
their land holdings to determine whether a contractual
arrangenent could be nade. She indicated that giving copies of
the concurrent resolution to those on the list would serve the
pur pose of publicizing that Al aska is open for business.

2:52:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  NAGEAK  sought clarification regarding what
gualifies as a state corporation.

MS. BLAI SDELL responded that the intention is to distribute the
proposed resolution to all executive directors of all State of
Al aska corporations, such as the Alaska Railroad Corporation,
the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, and the Al aska Mental
Health Trust. Al of the naned entities have |and hol dings and
may be interested in allow ng comrercial UAS access. She stated
that sending a copy of HCR 17 to all state corporations would
involve distributing an extraordi nary nunber of copies, and many
corporations would have no involvenent with the UAS industry.
She expl ai ned that specific UAS conpanies are not |isted because
not all of them are known to the [UAS Legislative Task Force].
Alaska is trying to attract business from both the Lower 48 and
overseas, and sone of these potential investors wish to remain
anonynous.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK stated that Amendnent 2 should be reworded
to read "State of Al aska corporations.”

2:55: 35 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER asked if Representative Nageak was offering a
conceptual anmendnent to Anendnent 2.

2:55:49 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK replied yes.

[ The coommittee treated the anendnent to Amendnent 2 as noved for
adoption. ]

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -27- February 4, 2016



2:55:53 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES offered that since HCR 17 does not need to be
distributed to every State of Al aska corporation, perhaps the
conceptual anendnent to the anendnent should be rephrased
"rel evant State of Al aska corporations.”

M5. BLAI SDELL stated that she would prefer to send HCR 17 to al
State of Al aska corporations, because she was not sure who she
woul d specifically exclude.

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK agreed with Ms. Bl aisdell's assessnent.
2:56: 34 PM

CO-CHAI R FOSTER asked if there was consensus from the committee
for adopting Conceptual Amendnent 1 to Amendnent 2.

CO CHAIR HUGHES stated that as the sponsor, she would be fine
wi th the Conceptual Amendnent.

2:57: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAVMAN offered that Anmendnent 2 should read
"following |ine 28" versus "followng line 26."

2:57:28 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES clarified that "after line 26" is correct, ow ng
to the work draft which, although not adopted, was provided.

CO CHAI R FOSTER requested clarification
MS. BLAI SDELL expl ai ned that under proposed Conceptual Anendnment
1 to Amendnent 2, the copies of the resolution would be sent to

"State of Al aska Corporations"”.

[ The commttee treated Conceptual Anmendnent 1 to Amendnent 2 as
adopt ed. ]

2:58:42 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER renpoved his objection to the notion to adopt
Amendnent 2, as anended, and wth no further objection
Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

2:59: 16 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -28- February 4, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report HCR 17, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHCR 17(TRA) was
reported fromthe House Transportation Standing Commttee.

3:01: 29 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
The House Transportation Standing Conmittee neeting was recessed

at 3:01 p.m to be continued at 1:00 P.M on February 6, 2016.
[ The nmeeting reconvened on February 6, 2016]

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -29- February 4, 2016



